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Annexure- I 

Bidder’s Queries and DBN Clarifications thereon:- 

 
 

Tender 
Request for Quotation (RFQ)from the Empanelled Agencies for Third Party Audit of Pilot project regarding extending BharatNet 

connectivity up to villages in the State of Bihar dated 17.04.2025 

Sl. No. Page Reference in 

the RFQ Document 

Clause No. in the RFQ Clarification Sought DBN Comments  

1 page no. 11 of 42 

and page no. 12 of 

42 

Clause no. 2.6 Timelines- " The 

timelines for physical and electronic 

verification of the work will be 

provided in the  work order 

depending on the number of GPs to 

be visited and Wi-Fi APs/FTTH 

connections to be verified. The 

entire verification work is required 

to be completed within 90 days from 

the date of issue of work order. Only 

in exceptional circumstances the 

timeline would be extended beyond 

90 days for a maximum period of 30 

days." 

and 

Clause 5.4- TPA is to submit the 

invoices (work order wise) to DBN 

along with certification of the work 

done and copy of reports. The 

invoices after due verification by 

DBN officials would be processed 

for payment at DBN office. 

a) Will there be a single work order or 

multiple work orders, and does the 90-

day duration apply to the entire 

project or to each individual work 

order? 

b) Kindly clarify if all the site has 

been installed and are operational. 

-As per Clause 2.2  

 

 

 

 

-Details will be provided in the 

Work Order 
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2 page no. 11 of 42 Clause no. 2.9 - In addition to the 

aforesaid works, the TPA shall also 

verify, validate and certify the Wi-

Fi APs of different vendors 

deployed by CSC SPV (one Wi-Fi 

AP per vendor) to ensure that the 

APs deployed in field are meeting 

the specifications as specified in 

TEC GR. The technical 

specifications are to be tested as per 

Annexure-VI, Section VII of RFQ. 

With reference to the requirement for 

verifying, validating, and certifying 

the Wi-Fi APs (Access Point) 

deployed by different vendors, kindly 

clarify whether these APs by different 

vendors fall within the existing list of 

GP/village sites provided in the RFP 

document. 

If these Wi-Fi APs are indeed 

additional sites and not part of the 

current site list, we request that you 

please provide the specific list of 

locations where these APs are 

deployed, along with the expected 

sample size for certification per 

vendor. 

Within exiting list of GPs 

3 page no. 11 of 42 The type of fiber deployed for 

extending the FTTH connections is 

also to be verified on sample basis 

with respect to the specifications as 

given in the earlier MoU with CSC-

SPV for Phase-I GPs, the technical 

specifications were as per BSNL 

P.O. No.MM/HR-2019/2F,4F of 

Drop cable/HCL/2018-19/30 dated 

09.01.2019 which were used for 

FTTH connectivity as drop cable. 

No separate cost would be paid for 

these verifications. 

With regard to the requirement for 

verifying the type of fiber deployed 

for FTTH connections on a sample 

basis, we request clarification on the 

following points: 

1.  Sample Size: What will be the 

sample size that should be followed 

for conducting this verification? 

2.  Scope of Verification: Is the scope 

of this activity limited to identifying 

and confirming the type of fiber used 

(e.g., 2F or 4F drop cable), or does it 

involve a comprehensive third-party 

assessment (TPA) to ensure full 

compliance with the detailed 

technical specifications as specified in 

BSNL Purchase Order No. MM/HR-

2019/2F,4F of Drop 

Cable/HCL/2018-19/30 dated 

09.01.2019? 

One sample of each make and size 

of Optical Fiber Cable. 
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4 page no. 12 of 42 Clause no. 5. Payment Schedule Will the payment to the TPA be linked 

to the performance of CSC-SPV? 

Specifically, if certain sites fail to 

meet the required specifications or 

operational parameters and TPA 

submits a non-compliance report, will 

payment still be released to the TPA. 

Or paymant of TPA be link to 

correction and retification work of the 

CSC-SPV and re auditing till the site 

gets clear? 

As per clause -5 

5 BoQ List of Wi-Fi APs and FTTH 

connections commissioned by CSC 

SPV 

Please provide the tentative list of 

Sites 

Shall be provided  along with 

work order 

6 10 Section III, Clause 2.2 The document mentions physical 

verification of 5% of 

GPs/Villages. Could you please 

clarify if this will be done through 

random sampling or if a stratified 

sampling method (to ensure 

district-level representation) 

should be followed? If stratified, a 

suggested approach would be 

appreciated. 

As per clause 2.4 (iii)  

 

7 11 Section III, Clause 2.3 Kindly confirm whether access to 

the NMS/NOC and relevant 

credentials for electronic 

verification will be facilitated by 

DBN or CSC-SPV. Additionally, 

will remote access to these 

systems be permitted? 

CSC-SPV to provide 
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8 12 Section III, Clause 2.8 Is there a cap on the number of 

FTTH connections and APs to be 

verified per village in electronic 

verification, or should we assume 

the entire list from CSC-SPV? 

As per clause 2.3.  

9 13 Section III, Clause 6.1 Will any penalties be waived in 

cases where delays are caused due 

to unavailability of field support 

or access constraints at the end of 

CSC-SPV or BBNL? 

As per clause 6  

10 15 Section IV, Financial Bid Format The financial format includes 

electronic verification of 56,086 

APs and FTTH nodes. If the 

actual count differs, please clarify 

whether the payments will be 

adjusted proportionately based on 

actuals. 

Note (4) of  page 17 of 42 of 

the RFQ Refers 

11 18 Section V, Clause 5 Are there any prescribed protocols 

or formats for data security, storage, 

or audit logs that the TPA must 

follow while handling sensitive data 

during the verification process? 

As per Provision in 

RFQ/Agreement 

12 33 Annexure VI For verifying compliance of Wi-Fi 

APs to TEC GR specifications, will 

DBN or CSC-SPV make sample 

units from each vendor available to 

the TPA, or is the TPA expected to 

coordinate this independently? 

CSC-SPV shall provide the 

sample units for testing.   
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13 24 SECTION-VII Annexures 

ANNEXURE-I 

As per format of physical 

vetrification "A. Access Point 

Location Details" AP Mac-id to 

be captured. Is TPA will be 

provided devices login details for 

access in advance along with list 

of GPs 

CSC-SPV to provide. 

14 25 ANNEXURE- IA 

Customer verification form (FTTH) 

as per point 07, "Aadhar No. of 

the user" to be collected while 

Under the DPDP Act, collecting 

Aadhaar numbers or related data 

is permissible only with explicit 

consent from the individual and 

for legitimate purposes. 

Department May clarify this. 

To be collected with 

subscriber’s consent. 

However, if same is not 

provided then appropriate 

remarks may be given. 

15 'Page No: 13 Section-III 

Clause No. 2 - Scope of Work 

Sub-Clause No. 2.3: Electronic 

Verification 

We request the authority to kindly 

clarify the specific location from 

where the electronic verification of 

100% of Wi-Fi Access Points and 

FTTH connections is to be conducted 

by the Third-Party Auditor (TPA). 

 

Additionally, we seek clarification 

regarding the integration of the CSC 

platform with the NMS system, 

specifically whether this integration 

will be available and accessible for 

verification by the TPA.  

 

Furthermore, we request information 

on the current availability status of the 

NMS/NOC system through which the 

TPA is expected to carry out the 

electronic verification activities. 

(i) Will be provided along with 

the work order.  

 

 

(ii) Not linked to BSNL/ BBNL 

NOC 

 

 

 

 

(iii) CSC-SPV to provide details  
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16 Page No: 13 Section-III 

Clause No. 2 - Scope of Work 

Sub-Clause No. 2.9 

We request the authority to Please 

confirm on the methodology for the 

verification of technical specification 

of Wi-Fi Access Points. 

 

Also, please confirm on the 

methodology for the verification of 

technical specification of Fiber and its 

sampling size. 

 

Further, please confirm on the 

technical specification for Security of 

the System & technical specifications 

for Intrusion Detection and 

Prevention for the System and its 

availability and deployment. 

(i) Test plan attached as 

(Annexure- QA) 

 

 

(ii) One sample of each make and 

size of Optical Fiber Cable.  

 

 

 

(iii) As per Annexure- VI  

 

17 Page No: 14 Section-III 

Clause No. 5 - Payment Schedule 

Sub-Clause No. 5.1 

We request the authority to make 

payment on milestone based i.e., 

payment shall be released on 

completion of every 200 Gram 

Panchayats in case of physical 

verification and on completion of 

every 2,000 nodes in case of 

electronics verification. 

 

This will help and support in 

maintaining cash flows 

As per Clause-5 , Section-III 

 

 

 

 

18 Page No: 15 Section-III 

Clause No. 8 - Resource 

Deployment 

We request the authority to kindly 

clarify the specific location from 

which the senior official of the TPA is 

to be deployed for day-to-day 

coordination with DBN, especially in 

the context where the TPA does not 

New Delhi 

 

 

 



P a g e  7 | 7 

 

have an existing office in the locations 

of Bihar State. 

This clarification will help in planning 

and mobilizing appropriate resources 

in alignment with the work order 

requirements. 

 

 

 

 

19 Page No: 26 Section-VII 

Annexure-I  

B. Ap Status 

 

Note: M/s CSC SPV will provide 

complete inventory details as at 

table A above (S.no 1 to 10) to 

DBN. 

We request the authority to please 

specify the timeline within which 

CSC-SPV will provide the inventory 

details of Wi-Fi APs and FTTH 

connections, as required for both 

physical and electronic verifications. 

Details shall be made available 

along with work order  

20 Page No. 6 Clause -2.1, Secton-II 1. The documents to be submitted 

along with financial proposal should 

be as per the eligibility criteria given 

in EOI - No: 30-415/2019-USOF(T) 

dated 20.04.2021 given on page No. 6 

point 2.1 or only the documents given 

in RFQ only. 

2. Full form of LMC . 

1. Page No. 6 point 2.1 refers to 

Empanelment of TPA agencies. 

 

 

 

2. Last Mile Connectivity 

 

***** 
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